
 

Transport, Environment & Climate Change Select 
Committee agenda 

Date: Thursday 17 September 2020 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue: Virtual Meeting via MS Teams 

Membership: 

S Broadbent (Chairman), C Clare, A Cole, G Hall, A Hill, M Hussain, M Hussain, C Jackson, 
S Jenkins (Vice-Chairman), D Lyons, P Martin, Dr W Matthews, M Smith, P Strachan and 
M Titterington 

Webcasting notice 

Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the council's 
website. At the start of the meeting the chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is 
being filmed. 

You should be aware that the council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act. 
Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the council’s 
published policy. 

Therefore by entering the meeting room, you are consenting to being filmed and to the 
possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes. 
If members of the public do not wish to have their image captured they should ask the 
committee clerk, who will advise where to sit. 

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the monitoring officer at 
monitoringofficer@buckinghamshire.gov.uk. 

Agenda Item 
 

Time Page No 

1 Apologies for Absence/Changes in Membership 10:00  
    
2 Declarations of Interest   
    
3 Public Questions 10:05 5 - 6 

mailto:monitoringofficer@buckinghamshire.gov.uk


 This is an opportunity for members of the public to put a 
question or raise an issue of concern, related to transport, 
environment or climate change. Where possible, the 
relevant Cabinet Member or Senior Officer to which the 
question/issue is directed will be present to give a verbal 
response. Members of the public will be invited to speak 
for up to three minutes on their issue. A maximum of 30 
minutes is set aside for the Public Questions slot in total 
(including responses and any Committee discussion). This 
may be extended with the Chairman’s discretion. 
 
Three questions have been received as attached.  
Responses will be received at the meeting. 
 

  

4 Minutes 10:35 7 - 14 
 The minutes of the meeting held on Thursday 11th June 

2020 to be confirmed as a correct record. 
 

  

5 Chairman's Update 10:45  
 For the Chairman to update Members on Transport, 

Environment and Climate Change scrutiny activities since 
the last meeting. 
 

  

6 Home to School Transport - Update 10:55 15 - 16 
 An update will be provided on Home to School Transport 

following the start of the new school term.   
 
Presenters: 
Councillor David Martin, Cabinet Member for Logistics 
Sara Turnbull, Service Director Transport Services. 
 

  

7 Climate Change Strategy - Update 11:25 17 - 22 
 The Committee will receive an update on the development 

of the Climate Change Strategy. 
 
Presenters: 
Councillor Bill Chapple, Cabinet Member for Environment 
and Climate Change 
Ed Barlow, Head of Energy 
Steve Bambrick, Service Director Planning and 
Sustainability 
David Sutherland, Head of Climate Change & Environment 
 

  

8 Update on Fly Tipping 11:55 23 - 28 
 The Committee will receive an update on fly tipping.  

 
Presenters: 

  



Councillor Bill Chapple, Cabinet Member for Environment 
and Climate Change 
 

9 20mph zones - Update 12:25  
 The Committee will receive a verbal update on 20mph 

zones.  
 
 Presenters: 
Councillor Nick Naylor, Cabinet Member for Transport. 
 

  

10 Work Programme 12:50 29 - 30 
 The Committee will discuss the work programme and 

agree the items for the next meeting. 
 
Presenters: 
All Committee Members 
 
Papers: 
Work Programme attached 
 

  

11 Date of Next Meeting 13:00  
 The next meeting will take place on Thursday 12th 

November 2020 at 10am. 
 

  

 
If you would like to attend a meeting, but need extra help to do so, for example because of 
a disability, please contact us as early as possible, so that we can try to put the right support 
in place. 

For further information please contact: Jemma Durkan on 01494 421635, email 
democracy@buckinghamshire.gov.uk. 



This page is intentionally left blank



Question 1. 

On behalf of the 7,000-or-so residents who signed a petition started by Jack Jordan, I am asking the 

Scrutiny Committee to review the policy of verge-cutting in the County. Jack also emailed a question 

to the Committee, and the following includes his thoughts and views as he was unable to attend 

today’s meeting. 

Bucks residents were horrified to see that wildflowers and grasses on verges had been mown down 

in mid-summer while they were still in flower, still feeding insects, bees and birds, and not yet 

having set seed for next year. 

By limiting and timing verge-cutting, Bucks can save money, increase biodiversity, live up to its 

climate change duties, and score valuable Brownie points with the voting and tax-paying public.  

In the financial year 2019/20, £883,075 was spent by the five former councils of Buckinghamshire on 

roadside verge grass cutting - plenty of scope for meaningful savings. 

And just last month, Bucks was selected by DEFRA as one of the pilot local authorities for the Nature 

Recovery Network and the creation of Local Nature Recovery Strategies. Roadside verges form a key 

element in biodiversity recovery, so to destroy them with unnecessary verge-cutting runs contrary to 

the spirit and objectives of the LNRS initiative. 

Of course, some small areas of verge must be cut back for safety reasons, e.g. to ensure sight-lines 

on bends and at junctions, but there is no good economic, environmental or social reason why huge 

swathes of our ‘linear nature reserves’ should be destroyed. In other words, the current policy runs 

counter to the basic principles of sustainability. 

How can the Scrutiny Committee help to ensure a sustainable policy from now on, to ensure that 

we, and the birds and insects, can enjoy more wildflowers for longer in 2021 and beyond. 

Question 2. 

Following the passing of the Climate Change motion at the Council’s first full meeting in July, the 

Council must now move forward in delivering a robust strategy and action plan on how it will 

achieve net zero by 2050.  

With regard to that strategy and action plan, can the Committee confirm whether the Council 

intends to consult with (a) external experts in this field and (b) local environmental groups in Bucks, 

many of whom are doing tireless and valuable work in an effort to make Buckinghamshire greener 

and reduce its carbon footprint.” 

Question 3. 

Given the reduced capacity of public buses due to Covid restrictions, what is the council’s plan for a 

suitable integrated car-free school bus - cycling- walking transport solution that provides affordable, 

clean transport for all children in the county to get to school? 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Buckinghamshire Council 

Transport, Environment & 
Climate Change Select Committee  
 

 
 
 

Minutes 
 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE TRANSPORT, ENVIRONMENT & CLIMATE CHANGE SELECT 
COMMITTEE HELD ON THURSDAY 11 JUNE 2020 IN VIRTUAL MEETING VIA MS TEAMS, COMMENCING 
AT 10.05 AM AND CONCLUDING AT 12.35 PM 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
 
S Broadbent, C Clare, A Cole, G Hall, A Hill, M Hussain, C Jackson, S Jenkins, D Lyons, P Martin, 
Dr W Matthews, M Smith, P Strachan and M Titterington 
 
OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE 
 
J Durkan, S Bambrick, R Barker, B Chapple OBE, Mr M Dickman, D Martin, N Naylor, R Smith, 
I Thompson and S Turnbull 
 
Agenda Item 
 
1 ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 
 The Clerk to the Committee requested nominations for the position of Chairman.  

  
Councillor Peter Strachan proposed Councillor Steven Broadbent for the position of Chairman, 
this was seconded by Councillor Carl Jackson. 
 
There were no other nominations. 
 

RESOLVED:  That Councillor Steven Broadbent be elected as Chairman of the Transport, 
Environment and Climate Change Select Committee for the ensuing year.  

 
2 APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRMAN 
 The Chairman proposed that Councillor Sandra Jenkins be appointed as Vice-Chairman, this was 

seconded by Councillor Andrew Cole. 
 

RESOLVED:  That Councillor Sandra Jenkins be appointed as Vice-Chairman of the 
Transport Environment & Climate Change Select Committee for the ensuing year.  

 
3 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE/CHANGES IN MEMBERSHIP 
 There were no apologies for absence. 

 
4 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 There were no declarations of interest. 
 

5 COVID 19 UPDATE 
 Mr B Chapple, Cabinet Member for Environment & Climate Change, took Members through the 

presentation which was contained in the agenda pack.  The following main points were made 
during the presentation: 
 

 Waste services had been most effected by the pandemic. 

 Staff had been absent due to illness or self-isolation and childcare. Up to 30% of staff had 
not been in work. 

 Major effect of the pandemic was the closure of the household waste and recycling 
centres as per the government guidelines.   

 To prepare for opening car parking spaces were removed, and signage and traffic 
management systems put in place to prepare for queues. 

 Five sites had been reopened on the 6th May, then after three weeks four other sites 
were opened; now all sites were open.  There had been 90,000 visits which was 20% 
down on the usual amount of people.   

 As there were only half the parking spaces there had been queues however people in 
general had been patient. Proof of identity had been required so that only residents of 
Buckinghamshire could use the sites.  

 Social distancing procedures were put in place across the sites. 

 Garden waste had been suspended for seven weeks across the county. 

 Food waste had been suspended in some areas for five weeks.  

 The Cabinet Member praised staff for all of their work during this difficult time. 

 Trailers were not allowed at the sites but everyone else were able to use the facilities 
from 9-6pm. 

 Trade waste would be allowed from 15 June. 
 
In response to questions the following main points were noted: 
 

 Comments from residents were that staff were professional and courteous and thanks 
was given to the teams.  

 Regarding fly tipping it was noted that all counties in the country were effected.  
Buckinghamshire was one of the best with 1 in 38 caught and taken to court.  It was 
noted that the national figure for this was 1 in 638.  Due to staff shortages it had been 
more difficult to collect fly tipping.   Most was due to commercial waste and work was 
being undertaken to improve legislation. 

 Takeaway boxes could be a problem regarding littering and officers were looking into 
adding the registration to the packaging.  However this would need government help and 
support from companies to carry out. 

 Concern was raised regarding traffic management and long queues at some sites.  It was 
reported that an alternative site at Buckingham had been considered, and closure of the 
current site but this was not an option.  A booking system had also been considered to 
reduce the number of people using the site but this would have created larger queues at 
later date. 

 To keep up with the government guidelines and inform the public the website was kept 
up to date, waiting times at sites were displayed on the website.  It was understood 
there would be queues and people were being asked to be patient. 

 Some staff had been redirected to other roles and officers were praised for dealing with 
all aspects required of them. 

 Refuse collection had been well managed however it was suggested that messaging 
could have been clearer.  

Page 8



 It was requested that charging a deposit on fast food containers be investigated.  The 
Cabinet Member confirmed he was happy to investigate any suggestions via email from 
Members. 

 Rules regarding social distancing on site were adhered to stringently with staff and the 
public.  Staff did not help people physically with their waste and charging was made 
contactless.  It was depended on government guidelines regarding future rules if there 
was a second wave and services would be kept open if possible. 

 Cardboard waste had increased and household waste sites were open for public to use to 
get rid of cardboard.  There were no figures available yet regarding food waste.  The 
Chairman requested that the Committee be provided with a financial analysis in the 
future.   

 Regarding recycling rates it was confirmed that these were around 56% across the 
county with a target of 60% before the crisis and there had been an increase in 
cardboard.  Household waste was now over 70% with satisfaction rates at 98%, however 
not all stats were not yet available.   

 
Mr Nick Naylor, Cabinet Member for Transportation provided information on his presentation.  
The main points were as follows: 
 

 Some areas had been effected more than others and officers had been assigned to 
COVID activities.   

 Highways maintenance continued as normal.  Adjustments had been made for social 
distancing. 

 Pot holes had been repaired and was up a third more than a year ago.   

 Urban grass cutting had also increased. 

 There were delays on some capital projects due to staffing illness and availability. 

 There were also delays on feasibilities studies.  

 Some HS2 Ltd activities had been reduced but applications had been received.  HS2 Ltd 
had been not been engaging and there was further work to be undertaken. 

 
In response to questions the main points were noted: 
 

 Members were concerned regarding lack of engagement with HS2 Ltd and residents. 
There were major works in the Chilterns producing major traffic works which were not 
coordinated so there were large volumes of traffic.  Issues are often ignored and they did 
not attend meetings.  The Cabinet Member confirmed he was attending a meeting with 
HS2 Ltd and engagement had been reasonable good with parish councillors and 
councillors.  He would pass on comments to HS2 and some councillors affected should be 
invited to the meeting.   

 A member was concerned that HS2 Ltd staff did not adhere to the social distancing rules, 
and they had continued deforestation during the nesting season.  The Cabinet Member 
confirmed he would take these comments to HS2 LTD.  

 Concern was raised regarding the lack of policy on 20mph speed limits by the Council 
and that there was strong demand from communities for this speed limit in some areas.  
Mr Naylor confirmed that there was no policy currently for 20mph limits.  Evidence did 
not support that this reduction made a significant difference and the work involved to 
support the changes in relation to the outcomes would need to be considered.  He would 
work with councillors and communities on schemes if requested.  The Chairman 
confirmed this would be discussed as part of the Committee’s work plan. Work would 
need to be done as part of the overall Travel Plan.  

 It was noted that other large projects were also creating issues, such as Crossrail 
accessing people’s gardens without permission and cutting down trees.  It was 

Page 9



understood that it was difficult to deal with these type problems and most large projects 
were legislated by the government.  

 
Mr David Martin, Cabinet Member for Logistics provided his main points alongside his 
presentation as contained in the agenda pack.  These were as follows: 
 

 Regarding home to school transport in addition to 1,300 contracts commissioned there 
were also seven private suppliers that manage 75 routes. These were paid directly by 
parents but suppliers provided the service for the council and schools.  

 The transport budget was £9.3mln and for home to school transport the budget was 
£17mln which was part of the education budget.  It was noted that 5 years ago this was 
£19 million and progress had been made in reducing costs.  

 Members and parents were advised to look at school transport policy and eligibility 
criteria on the website on how to apply for transport. 

 There was still some uncertainty regarding school transport due to government changing 
guidelines, school policy regarding opening and parent’s choices in travelling to school. 

 Adult social care travel had mostly stopped except for important visits and 
appointments. 

 The Council provided 75,000 concessionary bus passes, officers dealt with 2000 renewals 
per month and council tax payers support 60,000 journeys on buses.  

 The Council also managed a fleet of 200 vehicles. 

 At the date of the meeting 383 children had been provided with school transport and 
266 children with special education needs.  78 key worker children had taken up the 
offer of transport to school.  

 It was noted that two groups of suppliers were being provided with financial support. If 
not the companies could fold and then in September large amounts of children would 
not be able to get to school. 

 Following the Government’s announcement regarding some children returning to 
schools, there had been a number of applications for assisted transport.  Officers had 
worked over the weekend so that transport would be provided on the Monday for those 
who had successfully applied.  

 Regarding the 84 car parks the usual annual income of £12mln per annum had stopped. 
Since 27 March free parking has been provided in all car parks and on street paid 
parking.  There has been no enforcement for illegal parking on single lines or restricted 
bays, to assist key workers.  As of Monday 15 June enforcement would be reinstated, 
however free parking would continue in car parks and paid street parking, this would be 
reviewed by Cabinet at a later date. 

 Income lost for on street parking was noted as just over £2mln over 2 months. 

 Regarding inconsiderate parking at parks and beauty spots this had increased 
significantly due to government announcements and some areas had been 
overwhelmed, such as Dorney Park.  As a consequence 20 roads had been provided with 
temporary parking restrictions, which would then be replaced by temporary urban 
clearway restrictions which were both enforced by officers.    

 
In response to Member questions the following main points were noted: 
 

 Planning to have a complete return to school in September and there were a number of 
issues around this regarding home to school transport for children that needed to be 
considered.  

 Payments to suppliers for home to school transport had been retained so transport can 
be resumed immediately if needed. 

 There was concern that advantages regarding free car parking could not be advertised by 

Page 10



local businesses as there was risk that this decision could be changed at any moment.  It 
was noted that the council supported local business but parking would have to be 
managed and the lead in time for payments to commence will be considered by Cabinet.  

 The Council has provided guidance regarding facemasks on transport.  It was impossible 
to achieve social distancing on school transport, guidance to parents had been provided 
to avoid all public transport to drive, walk or cycle when possible.  

 Guidance from the Council had been provided to residents regarding wearing facemasks 
on public transport and parents were encouraged to wear masks but children were not 
required to wear them.  

 There were no plans to change any routes for rural bus services and financial support for 
rural bus routes would continue. 

 There was a rigorous inspection regime on the bus fleet to make sure they were fit for 
purpose. 

 It was suggested by a member that Cabinet members and officers should wear 
facemasks and to promote the use of cotton masks rather than disposal masks. 

 
The Chairman thanked the members and officers for their presentations, questions and 
responses. 
 

6 KEY PRIORITIES FOR 2020/21 
 Mr Bill Chapple, Cabinet Member for Environment and Climate Change highlighted the following 

priorities: 
 

 Regarding climate change, work was being undertaken towards the Council being carbon 
neutral.  Work was also being undertaken on the Carbon Audit based on 2018/2019 
figures. Tree planting areas were being considered and a review of the agricultural 
policy.  

 Household recycling centres would be reviewed and funding would be sought from the 
Capital Programme to upgrade some sites. 

 The new Household Waste Contract would commence on 7 September and this was 
expected to be a seamless transition between the old and new contractor.  Residents 
should not notice a difference initially but improvements would be made gradually.  

 
In response to questions the following points were noted: 
 

 The agreed Carbon Neutral date was 2050, any new date would need to be discussed 
and taken to a full Council meeting.  Work would need to be undertaken first on the 
Carbon Audit with results to Cabinet and then to Council, there was no timescale 
available as yet.  

 Regarding the COVID 19 crisis, work would be undertaken with regards to advantages 
regarding changes to working practices, supporting businesses, travelling, and cleaner air 
would be investigated to contribute to climate targets. 

 Work was required on the Agricultural Policy due to government legislation.  

 The Council aimed to be carbon neutral by 2050.  Investment and work would be 
required for all of Buckinghamshire to reach this target. 

 LED lighting for street lighting was suggested as well as solar panels on council buildings 
and change council and contractor vehicles to electric powered or compressed natural 
gas.  It was noted that there would be cost implications and the Cabinet Member would 
consider all points made by members. 

 
Mr Nick Naylor, Cabinet Member for Transportation highlighted the following priorities: 
 

Page 11



 Additional finance from the Government had been received for potholes, drains and 
road maintenance works and these were being undertaken to improve the roads in the 
County.  

 The Highways Contract re procurement would be undertaken which would involve a 
large volume of work and time.  

 Consideration was being given to improve services follow the COVID 19 crisis and it was 
understood that many changes could be made as a result of the crisis. 

 In response to a query regarding the Highways Contract it was suggested that the Select 
Committee could support the work being undertaken.  The timetable would confirmed 
within the next 6 months and the Committee would be able to contribute to the process. 

 
In response to questions the following was noted: 
 

 A first stage bid for funds from the Secretary of State for active transport projects such 
footways and cycle ways had been submitted.  The timetable had not yet been 
confirmed and long term projects at the second stage would be considered. The money 
would be used effectively and efficiently. 

 Consideration would be given to the types of vehicles using roads and reducing 
emissions with regards road maintenance objectives. Details would be discussed with 
officers regarding this issue.  

 The Road Maintenance Programme could be circulated if required.  It was noted weekly 
bulletin was issued outlining the works being undertaken.   

 
Mr David Martin, Cabinet Member for Logistics highlighted the following priorities: 
 

 Regarding home to school transport future costs and improvements would need to be 
considered.  

 The process to bring the previous five parking authorities together was being undertaken 
to bring teams together.  An interim manager of for off street parking had been 
appointed. 

 Work would be undertaken to create a countywide parking policy, members were asked 
to volunteer to sit on councillor working groups to support the work.  

 
In response to a question the following was noted: 
 

 Mr Martin confirmed there would be a countywide parking strategy and this would 
inform and assist parking behaviours and would reflect the needs in local areas.  There 
would be local consultation and with public and members to support the work.  

 
The Chairman thanked the Cabinet Members and officers for attending the meeting. 
 

7 WORK PROGRAMME 
 Members of the committee discussed ideas for the work programme and made the following 

suggestions: 
 

 A number of public questions and suggestions had been received and noted by the 
Committee. 

 Home to School Transport –The Chairman suggested a quick review in partnership with 
the Children’s and Education Select Committee regarding home to school transport 
ahead of September. 

 Travel Plan and consideration of 20mph zones.  

 Transport for Bucks re-procurement. 

Page 12



 Climate Change emergency plans and the Carbon Audit. 

 HS2 Ltd – Specifically considering flood mapping for the Chiltern run off.  

 Garden Town Plan Update – It was noted an update had been provided to Cabinet at 
their meeting in June.  

 Fly tipping update regarding enforcement. 
 
The Chairman noted that work programme items should add value for residents and the council.  
Also, that time and resources would need to be considered to achieve best value for residents. 
 
The Chairman thanked everyone for attending the meeting.  
 

8 DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 The next meeting would take place on 17 September 2020 at 10am. 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Councillor Steven 

BroadbentMgServicesBCKU 
Councillor for Greater Hughenden, 
Ridgeway East 
Buckinghamshire Council 
The Gateway 
Gatehouse Road 
Aylesbury 
HP19 8FF 
 

steve.broadbent@buckinghamshire.gov.uk 
 

 

Cllr David Martin 
Cabinet Member for Logistics 
Buckinghamshire Council 
The Gateway, Gatehouse Road 
Aylesbury 
HP19 8FF 

 

 
 
 
24 August 2020 
 

 
 

Dear David 
 
Home to School Transport   
 
I would like to thank both you and Sara Turnbull, Director for Transport Services for meeting with 
members of the Transport, Environment and Climate Change Select Committee earlier this 
month to discuss Home to School Transport. 
 
It was a very useful meeting and gave Members a valuable insight into the scale and complexity 
of the task of providing Home to School transport in Buckinghamshire, which has obviously been 
complicated further by the Covid-19 pandemic.  It was helpful to understand how school 
transport would be required to operate in light of the current restrictions and how the Council 
has been working closely with Head teachers to try to accommodate individual requirements for 
September. 
 
Members appreciated the opportunity to be able to ask questions about preparations for the 
return to school in September and stressed the importance of effective and timely 
communication with parents. 
 
Members were reassured that there are strong plans in place for September and the Council is 
liaising with contractors and parents to resolve any issues. I look forward to welcoming you and 
Sara to our Select Committee meeting on 17th September for a further update. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
Councillor Steven Broadbent 

        Chairman, Transport, Environment and Climate Change Select Committee  
 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



 

Page 16



Click to edit Master title style

Click to edit Master subtitle style

04/09/20 1

Click to edit Master title style

Click to edit Master subtitle style

04/09/20 1

Climate Change Strategy 
Update
TECC Select Committee 17 September 2020

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 7



BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL

Climate Change Strategy Development

• Work is framed by the passing of the Climate Change Motion at 
Council on 15 July – this directs us to:

• Produce proposal for Buckinghamshire as a whole to reach net 
zero by 2050

• Evaluate reaching net zero for its own emissions no later than 
2050, potentially by 2030 subject to resources 

• Development timeline based on adoption of Climate Change Strategy 
by Cabinet in February 2021

P
age 18



BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL

Strategy Development Time Line

Engagement 
and Drafting

Underway

Public 
Questionnaire

September / 
October

Sign off to 
Consult on Draft

Late October / 
November

Public 
Consultation on 

Draft

Mid-November 
to Mid-

December

Amendments to 
Strategy

December / 
early January

Internal Sign off

January / early 
February 

Adoption of 
Strategy

Cabinet 

9th February

Future TECC Meeting Dates and Strategy Development Stages
12 November: Public Questionnaire complete – draft Strategy being approved
14 January: Public Consultation complete - updated Strategy being approved
11 March: Climate Change Strategy adopted

P
age 19



BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL

Carbon Audit

• Commissioned following Shadow Executive 

• Establish the new baseline emissions for Buckinghamshire Council 
(based on existing data)

• Develop options for reaching net-zero by 2050 

• Draft documents developed and going through review and sign off

• Further work to be undertaken to evaluate the resources required to 
achieve net zero by 2030

P
age 20



BUCKINGHAMSHIRE COUNCIL

TECC Offline Working Group

• The Cabinet Member and Officers would welcome the creation of a 
TECC Working Group

• The Working Group would act as a ‘critical friend’ to support the 
development of the Climate Change Strategy 

• Provisional options for meeting aim / timing are:
• Initial scoping meeting (late September)
• Early draft discussion (early October)
• Detailed review of consultation draft (early December)
• Implementation review (February 2021)

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Fly-tipping - Clearances from public land (non-highway) – Buckinghamshire 

Author:  David Rounding  (With input from Gary Slee & Andrew Jenkins) 
7 September 2020 

 

Background 
 

1. The best available data in Buckinghamshire to illustrate fly-tipping trends is the set of clearances 

from public land (non-highway).  This data has been consistently gathered since 2003 (March of 

every year is coloured black for reference purposes and the monthly data coloured red 

represents the time before the launch of the Illegal Dumping Costs campaign in 

Buckinghamshire, prior to which there was no local authority enforcement action taken) :- 
 

 
 

 

2. This data shows a steady rise in fly-tipping across Buckinghamshire from 2013 onwards.  This 

reflects the national trend in fly-tipping data for England which we believe reflects the economic 

pick-up following the 2008 Banking Crisis. 
 

 

3. In August 2018 the Waste Partnership for Buckinghamshire (partnership between the five old 

councils prior to Buckinghamshire Council) launched the SCRAP Fly-tipping campaign in Bucks 

Page 23

Agenda Item 8



(with kind permission of Herts Waste Partnership).  August 2018 is coloured black and yellow of 

this graph to highlight it :- 

 

4. The SCRAP Fly-tipping campaign led to a significant fall in fly-tipping across Bucks over the 

following 12 months.  This bucked the national trend for English authorities over the same 

period. 
 

 

5. From September 2019 we recorded a renewed rise in fly-tipping in Bucks.  We believe that to be 

a re-balancing towards the national trend. 
 

 

6. It is important to note that our enforcement cases show that more than half of waste fly-tipped 

in Buckinghamshire has been brought into the county from elsewhere.  They also show that 

more than 60% has been dumped by commercial waste carriers, often called ‘trade waste’.   

It is therefore no surprise that Bucks data tends to revert towards the national trend. 

  

Page 24



COVID timeframe 

7. Nationally the press have reported significant fly-tipping and littering since the COVID crisis hit.  

They suggest a significant rise in dumping and littering but national data for the period is not 

expected to be available until October 2021.  In Bucks we have recorded significant increases in 

fly-tipping clearances as shown on the graph above. 
 

 

8. During the COVID crisis the clean-up teams have recorded higher dumping rates than we have 

experienced in Bucks since 2002-3 which is still the peak 12 month dumping level (although 

likely to be overtaken unless there is a dramatic fall in dumping levels in the near future) 
 

 

9. Anecdotally, officers have observed an increase in smaller dumps where householders have 

dumped their own waste, so that the recent percentage of incidents has skewed away from 

trade waste cases. 
 

 

10. These graphs show fly-tipping clearances in the four former Bucks District areas :- 
 

 

Page 25



 
 

11. Buckinghamshire Council re-opened 5 of its principal Household Recycling Centres (HRC) on 6 

May 2020.  The remainder were re-opened on 29 May 2020 and the uptake of the sites has 

been very strong from the start at all sites. 
 

 

12. Since the sites reopened, we have seen 80% of the usual visitor numbers for that time of year, 

despite only having half the parking spaces open due to social distancing. 
 

 

13. We have, however, seen the amount of waste brought to sites increase by over 10%. 
 

 

14. Despite smaller than usual numbers of residents using the sites more waste has been recycled 

which does not suggest any gap which would contribute to fly-tipping rises. 
 

 

15. We have not recorded any reduction in fly-tipping since the sites were re-opened and indeed 

the gathered data shows a continued increase even when legitimate sites were available. 
 

 

16. Surveillance cameras targeting fly-tipping were operating throughout Lockdown and over 40 

offences were detected including traceable vehicle details during Lockdown itself.  Of those 

vehicles only 5 belonged to Buckinghamshire residents.  The majority (over 50%) were vehicles 

registered to Slough residents and we have worked with Slough Borough Council to circulate 

appropriate messages both in Buckinghamshire and Slough to address this. 
 

 

Page 26



17. While deterrent investigation messages were circulated during lockdown, the courts were not 

operating and no offenders were convicted for fly-tipping offences in Buckinghamshire from 19 

March until 5 August 2020.  On average prior to that Buckinghamshire had convicted better 

than one a week for 10 years. 
 

 

18. Since 1 August 2020 Buckinghamshire Council has convicted 10 offenders who have incurred 

fines and costs totalling £17,500. 
 

 

19. Buckinghamshire Council adopted powers to serve £400 Fixed Penalty Notices (FPN) on both fly-

tipping offenders, and waste producers who fail in their duty of care regarding what happens to 

their waste.  This has now been fully implemented and since 1 August 9 FPNs have been issued. 
 

 

20. We believe that we have seen something of an ‘anarchic’ response in both the dropping of litter 

and fly-tipping where more people than usual are willing to flout the law.  We stress that this is 

still a very small number of people within the wider population as by far the majority of people 

are law-abiding and will not be tempted to dump waste illegally. 
 

 

21. We hope that resumption of visible enforcement will help bring behaviour patterns closer to the 

usual ones as soon as possible and that we can continue to implement wider fly-tipping 

reduction strategies.  This does seem to be shown in the geographic data from Chiltern, South 

Bucks and Wycombe.  Aylesbury Vale data does not show a positive response since the courts 

became available again and we are analysing data to see if there are patterns we can target to 

reduce Aylesbury Vale dumping. 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Date  Topic Description & Purpose Lead Officer Contributors 

17 September Home to School Transport 
Update 

To receive information on home to school transport 
planning and implementation following the full-time 
return of children to schools across the county.   

Sara Turnbull Chairman Cllr 
Broadbent, CM Cllr 
Martin 

 Climate Change Strategy Update on the work being undertaken on the new Climate 
Change Strategy.  

Ed Barlow 
David Sutherland 
Steve Bambrick 

CM Cllr Chapple  

 20mph Zones Report outlining detail of information with regards to data 
to support or not support the implementation of 20mph 
zones. 

 CM Cllr Naylor 

 Fly Tipping  Update on fly tipping data including work undertaken, 
costs, prosecutions and prevention.  

TBC CM Cllr Chapple 

12th November Transport Infrastructure – 
External Providers 

To receive an update on major projects being undertaken 
in the county.  

Dr Laura Leech CM Cllr Naylor 

 Climate Change Strategy Update on the Strategy.  Ed Barlow 
David Sutherland 

CM Cllr Chapple 

 Carbon Audit Update An update on the Carbon Audit and project planning. TBC CM Cllr Chapple  

 Fly Tipping  Update on fly tipping. TBC CM Cllr Chapple 

14th January 
2021 

TfB Contract Re-procurement To receive a report on the process and progress of the re-
procurement of the TfB contract.  

TBC CM Cllr Naylor 

 Climate Change Strategy Update on the Strategy Ed Barlow 
David Sutherland 

CM Cllr Chapple 

 Cycle/Pedestrian Friendly 
Schemes 

To receive information on new schemes 
planned/implemented following Government funding 

TBC CM Cllr Chapple/CM 
Cllr Naylor 

11th March 2021 Carbon Neutral 2030 Update on the plans and projects to be undertaken for the 
Council to be carbon neutral by 2030. 

Ed Barlow  
David Sutherland 

CM Cllr Chapple 

 Overview of the work 
undertaken by the TECCSC 
over 2020-21 

To consider the work undertaken by the Select Committee 
during 2020/21 and discussion on possible scope and 
programme of work for the future.  

Jemma Durkan Cllr Broadbent, Cllr 
Jenkins 

 

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Public Questions
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Home to School Transport - Update
	7 Climate Change Strategy - Update
	8 Update on Fly Tipping
	10 Work Programme

